

# EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

16007 Crenshaw Boulevard Torrance, California 90506-0001 Telephone (310)532-3670 or 1-877-ECAMINO

March 12, 2009

Board of Trustees El Camino Community College District

Dear Members of the Board:

Welcome to the last Board meeting of winter. Thankfully, the forecast for Monday, March 16<sup>th</sup> is for a temperature of 74 degrees. Ora.

- 1. The meeting will open with a presentation by Dr. Francisco Arce on El Camino College's report to the Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges due April 1, 2009. The draft report is presented in the Academic Affairs section of the agenda.
- 2. The Academic Affairs section includes Career and Technical Education Teacher Pipeline students' request to attend the California Industrial Technical Educators Association Conference, March 19-21, 2009. The cost is covered by the Career and Technical Education Teacher Pipeline Grant. Also, the statewide MESA organization will sponsor twelve MESA students' participation in the Santa Cruz Leadership Retreat.
- 3. The Student and Community Advancement section includes a recommendation for staff from the Transfer Center to accompany students to various college campuses and for the Language Academy to continue its cultural enrichment programs. Students are also seeking approval to attend the National Student Advocacy and Leadership Conference in Washington, D.C. and the Journalism Association of Community Colleges State Conference. You will also note the start of year-end events with your approval of the EOP&S Recognition Banquet on May 29, 2009. The Career Technical Education Grant is also presented for your approval.
- 4. Board Policy 4300 Field Trips and Excursions is presented for second reading and adoption. The changes suggested at the first reading have been included in the Procedure and are underscored for your review.
- 5. Under separate cover is a memo from Dr. Jeanie Nishime to me, March 9, 2009, giving additional information regarding the recommended student expulsion. If

- you want a detailed discussion of this, you may separate this item from the consent agenda. We have provided an opportunity for a closed session discussion.
- 6. The Administrative Services section is highlighted by the Planning and Budget Development Calendars 2009-10, along with various contracts and purchase orders.
- 7. Administrative Services, Measure E, updates category budgets and balances and awards bids. You will note the \$15,304, Change Order for the for the parking structure and a reduction in retention fee for Bomel Construction. The parking structure is considered 90% complete at this time.
- 8. The Human Resources section includes various personnel actions and changes to the Superintendent/President's contract.
- 9. The Superintendent/President's section includes a recommendation that the Board name one of its members to review nominations for membership on the California Community College Trustee's Board and a resolution ordering the Biennial Governing Board Election for Trustee Area 4, Dr. Ray Gen, and Trustee Area 5, Ms. Maureen O'Donnell.

At its last meeting, members of the Board discussed conducting a search for a Chief Executive Officer. As a follow up from that discussion, enclosed is an excerpt from the Community College League of California Board Handbook "Conducting a Successful CEO Search."

Also following up to the last Board meeting, enclosed is a letter from Dr. Nishime to me, March 10, 2009, outlining the El Camino College Safe Driver Program.

The following items are enclosed for your review:

- 1. President's Newsletter, February 27, 2009;
- 2. School Year Calendar for 2009/2010;
- 3. Comparison of Accreditation Sanctions Across Commissions, 2003-2008
- 4. Letter from Michael S. Botello, Instructor of Business Law/Real Estate thanking the Board for gift presented in celebration of his 30<sup>th</sup> anniversary at El Camino College.

- 5. Invitation to attend the Paramedic Training Institute 209<sup>th</sup> Paramedic Class Graduation ceremony on April 22, 2009, at 3 p.m. on the El Camino College campus.
- 6. Letter from George Boggs, President and CEO, American Association of Community Colleges, February 3, 2009, thanking the College for nominating Dennis H. Mangers for the Outstanding Alumni award.

I look forward to greeting you in my office at 3 p.m. on Monday prior to our 4 p.m. Board Meeting. In the meantime, please feel free to contact Kathy or me with any questions, comments or concerns.

Sincerely,

Thomas M. Fallo

Superintendent/President

TMF/kao



# Conducting a Successful CEO Search

The following information describes the steps boards should consider when designing the CEO search process. Please contact Jody Ansell, <a href="mailto:jansell@ccleague.org">jansell@ccleague.org</a>, for a list of search consultants and a list of districts that have recently conducted CEO searches.

# Table of Contents

The Process	1
The Timeline	
Cost and Budget	2
Appointing an Interim CEO	3
The Consultant	4
Pros and Cons of Using a Consultant	4
Recruiting and Selecting a Consultant	5
Assessing the District	6
Identifying the Leadership Needed	8
Setting Search Parameters	9
The Search Committee	10
The Job Announcement	11
Recruiting Candidates	12
Announcement	12
Advertising	13
Personal Contacts	13
Confidentiality	13
Narrowing the Field of Candidates	13
Selecting the Semi-Finalists	14
Evaluating the Semifinalists	14
Meeting with the Candidates	15
Reference Checks	15
Selection of the Finalists	16
The Final Evaluation	17
Final Interviews	
College and Community Meetings	18
Site Visits	18
Making the Choice	18
The Contract	19
What to Avoid	
The Brown Act	
After the Selection	

College Presidents in Multi-College Districts	21
A Final Word	
Bibliography	
Appendix A. CEO Search Consulting Firms	
Appendix B. California Community College CEO Searches	

# Conducting a Successful CEO Search

Selecting the district's chief executive officer is one of the board's most important responsibilities. The CEO occupies the central role in a community college district. As the agent of the board and the embodiment of its authority, she or he is the most powerful and influential individual in the campus community, as well as the representative in the community of the district's values and mission.

Because the outcome of the selection process is so important, it should never be taken lightly or conducted in haste. The entire district—and particularly the board—will benefit from a comprehensive and thoughtful process that involves the appropriate constituencies of the institution and community and clarifies goals and priorities. Such a process allows the board to select a person it can support fully and establishes a foundation that enables the new leader to be effective.

The responsibility for the search process lies solely with the district board. The following material is provided to assist boards in conducting a search that best suits the individual needs, culture, and circumstances of the district.

The information describes the search for a chancellor or superintendent/president. Searching for a college president in a multi-college district is discussed at the end of the document.

# The Process

Laying a strong foundation for an excellent search begins by thoroughly planning the process to be used and exploring the type of leadership needed by the district. The search process should be designed to hire the person who can best meet the particular needs of the district. The most common mistake boards make during a CEO search is acting too quickly and not giving adequate thought to what the district needs in a new leader. Boards should allow six to nine months for the entire process.

The following are important to address in developing the process:

- The process is acted on and controlled by the board. It includes broad and meaningful representation from interested constituencies.
- The timeline for the process is clearly communicated and allows for a comprehensive search and selection.
- All stakeholders are knowledgeable about the steps in the process and the responsibilities and authority of the board, consultant, and search committee.
- The search results in a broad, diverse pool of candidates.
- All candidates are treated graciously and fairly.

 The newly appointed chief executive has the opportunity to begin with a strong base of support.

# The Timeline

The timeline for the process should allow for sufficient time to recruit a substantive pool of applicants and assess candidates. Howeve, after people are invited for interviews, time is of the essence. Decisions must be made quickly to protect the candidates and the district's interests. Lengthy intervals between interviews and decisions may result in the withdrawal of excellent candidates.

The process can take six to nine months, although the length of the search may vary considerably from district to district. Rough estimates of the times it may take to do different tasks are listed below. The tasks may overlap and are not necessarily sequential.

- Find and appoint an interim (if necessary): 2 6 weeks
- Hire a consultant: 4-6 weeks
- Design the process: 2-4 weeks
- Assess district needs and develop the job description: 4-6 weeks
- Appoint a search committee: 2 4 weeks
- Advertise and recruit: 6 − 12 weeks
- Screen applications: 2-3 weeks
- Determine who to invite for further review: 2-4 weeks
- Conduct first round of interviews and other assessments: 1-2 weeks
- Check references: 1-3 weeks
- Conduct final round of interviews and other assessments: 1 2 weeks
- Make the selection: 1-2 weeks
- Negotiate the contract: 1 − 2 weeks
- Notify other candidates: 1 2 weeks
- Welcome, orient, and support the new CEO: ongoing

# Cost and Budget

The cost of the search should be viewed as an investment in the success of the college. Consultant fees generally range from \$20,000 to \$35,000. Some consultants charge a fixed price, where others have a sliding scale depending on the financial resources of the institution.

In addition to consultant costs, expenditures may include advertising, candidates' interview expenses, and visits to candidates' home bases. Because the emphasis

should be placed on securing the right person for the job, the board should be willing to allocate whatever expenditures are considered reasonable and necessary.

# Appointing an Interim CEO

There are a number of circumstances where it is necessary or preferable to appoint an interim CEO to serve between the time that the current CEO leaves and a new, permanent CEO begins. The most common circumstance is when the departure date of the incumbent CEO does not allow enough time to do a careful search. Many CEOs are able to announce their retirement or plan to leave for a new position well in advance of their actual departure date; however, it is not usual for vacancies to occur relatively quickly, creating a time gap between the incumbent's departure and the new CEO's starting date.

Even when there is sufficient time between an announcement and the departure date, there may be circumstances that cause a board to appoint an interim CEO as a transitional leader. Having an interim CEO may be appropriate when the incumbent CEO has been a very strong and/or long time leader. There may need to be a significant period of time without a permanent CEO to allow the district to explore the culture and needs of the district and to avoid having the past leadership styles and the incumbent CEO overly influence the job description for the next leader. An interim CEO may provide a neutral environment in which the college community and board can define what type of leadership they need and conduct a search for that person.

Although interim CEO appointments may be made relatively quickly the process should comply with Title 5, Section 53021. Other basic questions to be considered are:

- What skills should the interim chief executive possess? What role will he or she play?
- How long should the interim be expected to serve? Should the board appoint an
  interim for a year or so who is asked to achieve certain goals, or should the
  interim be appointed just until the search can be completed?
- Should the interim CEO be appointed from within or hired from outside the institution? If from the outside, should a firm that specializes in providing interim executives be used?
- Should the board require the candidates for the interim position to disavow interest in the permanent position?

CEO search firms will assist boards to identify an interim CEO. Most observers of the process believe it wise not to appoint a person who could possibly be a candidate for the permanent position. By doing so the board may subject itself to criticism that the search and selection process for the new CEO was never truly open and fair. Many interims are retired CEOs with successful track records or senior administrators with no interest in the top job at that district.

## The Consultant

The complex and highly structured process involved in seeking a new chief executive requires that it is managed by someone who has the necessary time, expertise, and knowledge of potential candidates. The decision whether to employ a consultant or to rely on district staff is best made at the very onset of the search. If the board decides to use a consultant, the person chosen can assist the board in parts or all of the phases of the search.

## Pros and Cons of Using a Consultant

Should a district hire a consultant to help the board and others with the search? Arguments against using a consultant include:

- Districts with good reputations will have the ability to attract a broad pool through their own recruiting efforts.
- The cost of a consultant may create negative reactions in the community and in the district.
- Strong consultants may "take over" the search process.
- An unethical consultant can manipulate the process so as to advance the consultant's friends or professional cronies, or to eliminate others.
- Over-dependence on consultant may lessen committee and board involvement in final choice.
- A consultant may not have necessary understanding of the history and culture of an institution.
- It may be difficult to oversee the work of the consultant and to assure that work is being done.
- Unethical consultants may recruit people that may not be viable candidates for a particular district in order to have a sufficient number and a broad demographic mix of finalists.

The benefits of hiring a consultant include the professionalism, experience and contacts that good consultants bring to the process, thereby relieving district personnel, who are already very busy and are likely inexperienced in executive search, from this major and important responsibility. A well-connected consultant can often provide important information to decision-makers on the strengths and weaknesses of candidates not normally found on an application or uncovered in an interview. The help of a respected consultant with national and statewide contacts to recruit outstanding candidates is often particularly important for a district with a troubled image.

#### Consultants can:

Help clarify and verify realistic institutional priorities and leadership needs.

- Help bring people together and lessen conflicts if the environment is politicized.
- Identify and recruit candidates who might not otherwise be applicants.
- Identify and avoid mistakes and problems.
- Conduct rigorous, extensive and consistent background checks.
- Offer support and reassurance to the search committee and board throughout the process.
- Save time in narrowing applicants to a manageable number for committee/board review.
- Monitor the process to ensure a high level of confidentiality.

### Recruiting and Selecting a Consultant

Recruiting a consulting firm usually involves requesting firms to submit proposals for doing the search. The request for proposals should outline the services the consultant is expected to perform, which may include such tasks as:

- Study, institution and determine college leadership needs and institution priorities.
- Assist in development of characteristics and qualifications needed in the next president.
- Advise on type of selection process to use.
- Prepare advertisements and brochure.
- Provide guidance in establishing appropriate internal and external communications.
- Provide clerical assistance for receipt of applications and letters to applicants.
- Screen applications.
- Recruit candidates to supplement the pool.
- Investigate and evaluate candidates.
- Work with board and/or screening committee during discussions of candidates.
- Assist board and/or screening committee in preparing for interviews and campus visits.
- Conduct reference checks and report information.
- Be available for general consultation by phone.
- Advise the board on contract issues, assist with the final selection, and help the board establish expectations between board and president.

The request for proposal should require firms to provide evidence of their "track record" in doing searches. The proposal may also include the background the board expects of the consultant, including criteria such as experience working with higher

education, community colleges in general, and/or community colleges in California and/or that are similar in size and location. Additional preferences or requirements may include having worked with business and industry, being knowledgeable about state system and local colleges, or having been a chief executive officer.

The request for proposals should be mailed to firms that are likely to meet the criteria (see Appendix A). Once proposals have been received, the board reviews them and may ask consultants to make a presentation on how they would handle the search. Ideally, a board will have a list of questions and criteria that will enable the trustees to assess the experience, services and operating methods of the firms. Boards will want to know the success rate of prior CEO searches and explore the reasons for both the successes and those searches that had to be extended, where the candidate did not accept the offer, or where the new CEO left after a short period of time. The board should also:

- Meet the person who will be assisting this district, not just a representative of the firm.
- Discuss ground rules, operating procedures, and costs.
- Talk to people at other institutions where the consultant has worked.
- Ask about the extent of the consultant's contacts and networks.
- Learn about the consultant's track record in developing a diverse pool of qualified candidates.
- Know how many other searches the consultant and the firm will be handling simultaneously.

Once the board is comfortable that the consultant will be able to understand the district's needs and work well with the board and others involved in the search, the board should review the proposed contract and ensure that its expectations, the costs, and the timeline are clear.

# Assessing the District

As one of the first stages of the executive search, governing boards must conduct an institutional review in order to answer the most important question they face — what kind of CEO do we need? Many districts make the mistake of defining the qualifications for the chief executive without explicitly considering the needs of the institution and its future direction. The result can be a mismatch of talents, skills, experiences, needs and commitments.

A related question is "what kind of CEO can we attract?" Districts with major financial problems, a divided board, negative employee relations or disgruntled faculty groups, or other challenges and problems will have a more difficult time attracting high quality candidates. Boards in districts with major problems will need to emphasize the positive opportunities in the district and discuss strategies to address the problems. They may consider hiring an interim CEO to deal with major

issues. If the board is dysfunctional, it should consider engaging in board development to increase its effectiveness: good CEOs do not want to work for dysfunctional boards.

An institutional review does not need to be time consuming or elaborate. What is important is that trustees discuss the past, present and future among themselves and with campus and community leaders. Strategic plans and accreditation self-studies also provide much information about the direction and needs of the district. The assumptions and expectations that trustees and stakeholders have about the position should be clearly defined and potential "mixed messages" from the board clarified.

The following list of questions may assist boards in conducting an institutional review:

- 1. Why does the vacancy exist?
- 2. What are the long-range institutional goals for students and the community? Is a change in direction wanted or needed to improve programs for students and meet community needs?
- 3. What are the strengths and weaknesses of the institution's academic and student services programs? How effectively is the institution performing its mission?
- 4. What are the college's enrollment prospects for the future? How successful are its students? Should steps be taken to improve recruitment and retention efforts?
- 5. How strong are the administration, faculty, and staff in performing their responsibilities? Does there need to be increased attention to professional development?
- 6. What are the strengths and weaknesses of the institution's fiscal condition? Are changes either wanted or needed? Does the new CEO need to be involved in resource development?
- 7. Is the current district environment conducive to faculty, administration and staff productivity and participatory decision-making?
- 8. How adequate are the facilities? What alternatives are available to meet the needs of the institution in the future?
- 9. Does the district have the whole-hearted support of the community or does the its reputation need refurbishing?
- 10. How well has the present governance and management structure operated? Has the board provided clear, consistent and forward thinking leadership? If not, why not? What role will the CEO play in helping the board govern better in the future?
- 11. What kind of relationship does the board wish to have with the CEO?
- 12. What leadership style does the board expect from the new CEO to meet institutional needs? (Note: boards should avoid a common mistake made in

identifying preferred leadership styles, which is to base preferences on what they liked and disliked in the prior CEO, rather than objectively assessing what the institution needs).

The district needs assessment results in statements that define specific challenges, issues, and opportunities that are facing the district in the next few years. Districts may need more attention to certain areas and less to others: assessments often identify strengths and challenges in institutional effectiveness, planning, fiscal management, resource development, academic programs, student services, community relations, facilities, human resources, economic development, and the like. For instance, the board may wish the district to establish new directions or work with the community or constituency groups in new and different ways.

# Identifying the Leadership Needed

The next step is to identify the particular professional qualifications, qualities, and special competencies that will ensure the district has the leadership it needs. It is tempting to develop an ideal, all-encompassing list of expectations; however, no one person "has it all." The above process identifies the most important tasks facing the district and through this, the board establishes its priorities for the new CEO. These priorities and expectations influence the way the job is described in the announcement, and are what makes each CEO position unique.

The professional qualifications expected generally address educational achievements and the type of experience the person has. Expectations may be listed as "required" or "preferred." Expectations for educational achievements and experience may be defined broadly or narrowly. The board should discuss the following types of questions

- Is a doctorate required or desired? Does it matter what field the degree is in?
- How much administrative experience is required? Must it be "senior-level" experience (e.g., vice president or college president?) May the experience be at any level of education, including K-12 and universities? Should it be in public education? Does it need to be in community colleges, and specifically in California community colleges? What about executive experience in business, government, or industry?
- Should candidates have experience in teaching and/or student services? At what educational level?
- Are there specific areas in which experience is required or preferred, such as instruction, fiscal management, facilities construction, community relations, fundraising, or collective bargaining?

How a board defines its expectations determines, in part, how big the pool of applicants will be. A broad pool provides boards with the opportunity to consider a wide variety of skills, backgrounds, and experiences. Narrowing the expectations

may result in fewer applicants, but those applicants will be more likely to have the background the board has determined is necessary to lead the institution.

Those involved in the assessment also explore more specific qualities required to provide the necessary leadership. Some of these might include: being student-centered; focusing on student learning; conflict resolution skills; ability to facilitate communications among various college constituencies; commitment to institutional research and program improvement; active in the community and in building community partnerships; advocacy skills and support for professional growth of faculty and staff; knowledge about educational trends in technology, etc.

The board drafts a description of what is expected and the duties, responsibilities, and qualifications. The description becomes the basis for the search committee's evaluation of candidates.

# Setting Search Parameters

Contract Provisions. Early in a CEO search process, boards should discuss possible contract provisions and engage in discussions with the search consultant and legal counsel about trends in contracts and what the board can do to ensure that the position is attractive to potential applicants. An attractive contract becomes a recruiting tool.

While the final contract will not be settled until the board and finalists discuss their expectations and needs, the board should set general parameters for salary, benefits, contract length, moving allowance and other contract provisions. Boards in areas where housing costs are high may wish to explore alternatives to ensure that excellent candidates will be able to accept the position.

Having a general idea of the parameters for the position provides important information for the consultant and potential candidates. Potential candidates will be able to learn if they can "afford" to apply. The final negotiations with the successful candidate can be conducted with clear understandings on both sides.

The Candidate Pool and Finalists. The board may set criteria for how widely the position is advertised and to what groups. It may wish to set parameters for the number and quality of applications that must be received before screening starts. Most boards reserve the right to extend the deadline date and/or to consider nominations and applications up until the time that the position is filled, which allows for additional recruiting if the initial pool is not adequate.

Boards should also establish a minimum number of finalists that the committee should recommend for board consideration. The "ideal" number varies depending on the district circumstances, but pools of three to eight names are common. Setting a low number can limit the board's ability to evaluate a variety of finalists; setting too high a number could result in candidates being included who may not be competitive. Boards also often retain the right to consider one or more semi-finalists whose names may not have been forwarded to the board, and that right should be

clearly established and communicated to the search committee at the beginning of the process.

Equal Opportunity Employment. As equal opportunity employers, districts want interested applicants to have full and fair opportunity to compete for positions. Ensuring equal employment opportunity involves creating an environment that is welcoming to men and women, persons with disabilities, and individuals from all ethnic and other groups protected from discrimination. Boards may wish to affirm their commitment to equal opportunity and set parameters that require recruitment and selection practices to be quite inclusive and open. Diverse pools of applicants ensure that search committees and boards have the opportunity to identify semi-finalists and finalists who represent the richness of California's population.

# The Search Committee

Common practice in community colleges is that the board appoints a search committee to advise the board and conduct the initial phases of the search. The average committee is composed of 10-14 people, and may include faculty, administrators, classified staff, students and representatives from the community. The board should set some criteria for the skills and knowledge of those on the committee, including awareness about the demands of the position and needs of the district. Recommendations for representatives from different constituency groups usually come from the groups themselves; however, boards may reserve the right to request additional recommendations that better meet the criteria.

When making committee appointments, boards should consider the knowledge the members will bring, as well as the importance of having a well-balanced committee that represents various perspectives and backgrounds. The committee should consist of people who are committed to seeking candidates who will provide the best leadership possible for the district and meet the priorities set by the board.

There are different points of view on whether trustees should be members of the district search committee. On one hand, having one or two trustees as members provides oversight and a link between the search committee and the board and ensures a trustee perspective throughout the process. On the other hand, since trustees have the final say as members of the board, they play a dual and potentially conflicting role by being on the search committee. It is very difficult for individual trustees to avoid being perceived as representing board opinion even when they are acting as individuals.

Boards can avoid the potential conflicts role by clearly defining the leadership they are seeking as well as the parameters for the process, and then delegating responsibility for initial screening and assessment to the consultant and committee. If the direction from the board to the committee is clear, there is little need to have trustees on the selection committee.

The role, responsibilities and authority of the search committee and consultant (if any) are established by the board and clearly communicated to the committee. The

chair of the search committee may be appointed by the board or selected by the committee itself.

Members of search committees are assuming an important responsibility and must agree to conduct themselves with integrity. They must be willing to maintain the confidentiality of the process. Orienting and training the committee includes thoroughly communicating its responsibilities, ensuring that it understands the search process and principles, educating the members about the board's expectations of the chief executive and the qualities that are needed in the role, and discussing how to evaluate applications and conduct interviews. Committee members may be required to sign a memo of understanding regarding their responsibilities, and may be removed if they violate confidentiality or otherwise fail to perform their duties.

The functions of the committee may include:

- · Participating in the assessment of district leadership needs;
- Making suggestions to the board on the job announcement and recruiting process;
- Reviewing applications and narrowing the field of candidates to those who they
  wish to consider further;
- Assessing the semi-finalists (generally through interviews), and recommending to the board the finalists.

The names that the committee forwards for board consideration are those whom the committee believes best meet the qualifications and could serve as the chief executive for the district. The committee may forward their comments on the candidates, but the candidates should not be ranked.

# The Job Announcement

The job announcement is the statement of the district expectations and qualifications and talents candidates should possess. Since it is the primary resource in recruitment activities and assessing candidates, care should be taken to ensure the job announcement effectively communicates these qualifications and expectations. Boards may wish to review some examples of job announcements prior to finalizing their own.

Job announcements often include the following:

The Position. Briefly describes the position and its primary functions, such as educational leader responsible for all district operations and assuring that the district is administered in accordance with board policy. Describes the chief executive officer's relationship with the board of trustees and her or his authority within the district.

Information on the District and College(s). Provides potential applicants with basic information about the district and may include history, size, campus locations, mission, values, and notable accomplishments.

Region and Communities. Provides highlights of the area served by the college, including the cities and communities, population, recreation and cultural opportunities, and other important characteristics.

Challenges, Issues, and Opportunities. Highlights the major issues that the district will be facing in the foreseeable future. Candidates should be aware of the district's special goals and needs. For example, a major planning effort may be needed in order to develop partnerships with business and industry.

Duties and Responsibilities. Includes the general duties required of all chief executives in planning, finance, policy formulation, community involvement, etc., and may include specific duties related to specific issues, when appropriate.

Professional Qualifications. Includes the educational background and experience that is required and preferred. Describes the most important qualities the new CEO is expected to have to address the challenges, issues, and opportunities.

Application Process. Applicants are generally expected to submit a letter of application that includes how they would address the challenges and opportunities identified in the job and how they meet the preferred professional and personal qualifications. They are also asked to include their resume and the names of people who will serve as references. The date when the review process will begin is included, as well as any notice that applications will be considered until the position is filled.

Compensation. Includes the benefits, but generally does not contain salary information. Job announcements usually state that the compensation is competitive and negotiated with the board.

# **Recruiting Candidates**

No matter what the reputation of the district is, successful boards recognize that even their marvelous institutions have to actively recruit for candidates. The board should make clear to the consultant or staff member who is managing the recruitment process that great potential candidates should be contacted and encouraged to apply. Recruitment is more than sending out the job announcement and waiting for applications.

The quest for an outstanding chief executive begins with identifying a pool of outstanding candidates. The consultant or person charged with the responsibility for managing the search will use a number of approaches to create a talented pool of applications.

### Announcement

A simple, attractive brochure supplies the pertinent information about the state, district, community, and position that candidates need to determine whether they are both qualified and interested. The brochure should be widely distributed to other community colleges, universities, and associations, as well as key educational

leaders in universities and associations, and individuals who are identified as particularly capable.

### Advertising

Advertisements describing the opportunity are placed in newspapers and magazines read by candidates the institution wants to apply. Advertising need not be limited to publications that target community college and higher education personnel if the board wishes to consider leaders in government, business, and industry.

### Personal Contacts

While advertising in periodicals and distributing brochures will attract applicants, many excellent candidates are functioning successfully in their present positions and may need to be encouraged to apply for the position.

Nominations should be sought through personal contact from knowledgeable persons who understand the institution and its needs. Successful administrators at similar institutions should be encouraged to apply. Chief executives known to have good personnel development practices should be contacted for names of employees or former employees who might apply. Finally, strong prospects who initially decline invitations to apply should not be disregarded but vigorously pursued.

Trustees should not actively recruit candidates. They should provide the names of potential candidates to the search consultant or responsible staff members, and may encourage excellent candidates to apply. However, they should stop short of advocating for specific candidates in the recruitment phase. Active recruitment or advocacy can be interpreted as favoritism and can taint the process.

### Confidentiality

Confidentiality is crucial throughout the search process. This is particularly true in making direct contact with personnel at other districts.

- Allow only the consultant, designated manager of the process or search
  committee chair and his or her staff to receive and respond to inquiries and
  applications. Individual board members and search committee members should
  never ask candidates to send an application directly to their home or office.
- No member of the committee should seek information on a candidate unless specifically directed by the consultant or staff member managing the process. One of the most common breaches of confidentiality occurs when committee members call their counterparts at the home base of the candidate, thus invariably alerting the candidate's campus or employer.

# Narrowing the Field of Candidates

After receiving applications, one of the first tasks is to identify and set aside those candidates who do not meet the minimum qualifications listed on the position announcement. This may be done by the consultant, the district staff member

responsible for the search, or the committee (or a subcommittee). In addition, the pool is evaluated to ensure that it has an adequate number of applications. If not, the search may be extended and more applications sought.

Applicants who will not be considered further should be notified at this time.

# Selecting the Semi-Finalists

Next, the search committee reviews the qualified applications. Using the criteria listed in the job announcement and a system for assessing the applications, the list of candidates is narrowed further to those who, at least on paper, have the experience and skills necessary to succeed in the job.

As the pool is narrowed, care should again be taken to ensure that there are a sufficient number of candidates and that the pool includes a sufficient variety of candidates. If these two conditions are not met, the board should seriously consider extending the search.

Next, the committee should determine the top candidates and identify semi-finalists to be invited to be involved in further consideration. The number of those invited to interview can vary widely, depending on the district and the pool. At this time, calls may be made to the institutions listed on the application to verify experience and education. However, these calls should not violate the confidentiality of the applicant.

Those who are not selected for interviews should be informed in a timely manner and treated with courtesy and respect.

# **Evaluating the Semifinalists**

The purpose of the evaluation is to identify whether or not the person has the skills and qualities required to lead the institution and fulfill the expectations, and to determine the extent of the "fit" between the candidate and the position. The evaluation process is also an opportunity for candidates to learn about the institution, position, and expectations, so that they may make an informed decision about their commitment to the institution.

Committee members are responsible to study the candidates' applications and resumes prior to meeting with the candidates. They then have a solid foundation for their evaluation of the applicants through the process. The committee should receive training on sound interview principles, including practices that assure equal opportunity.

Prior to the interviews, candidates should have access to strategic plans, financial reports, accreditation reports, minutes of board meetings and key college committees, personnel policies and collective bargaining contracts, student newspapers, and other appropriate information. They should have every opportunity to learn about the institution and its specific challenges and opportunities.

# Meeting with the Candidates

The primary method of evaluating semi-finalists has been an interview with the search committee. However, many colleges have expanded the evaluation process and include strategies such as a series of interviews with key people on campus, "inbasket" and scenario exercises, and presentations on simulated problems. All of these are designed to assess the skills of the candidates in different situations. The strategies used in the evaluation process should allow candidates to apply creative and critical thinking and express their educational and management philosophy.

Consultants and human resource professionals have many resources to help develop interview questions and exercises. Sample questions are:

- How do you ensure the focus on students and their needs is paramount?
- How do you assure yourself of faculty quality?
- What campus and off-campus activities have provided your greatest source of satisfaction?
- What is more important: for the college to enhance the individual student or serve the broader needs of society?
- How do you define "leadership"?
- Who determines the objectives of the college and how they are evaluated?
- How can the college best meet the needs of the local community while at the same time being accountable to state interests?

Sample exercises may include:

- Make a presentation on your accomplishments as chief executive as if it were two years from now.
- Give the outline of the speech you would make at the first all-district meeting.
- Participate in an "in-basket" exercise in which a series of situations and scenarios are presented and the candidate is asked to respond as if he or she were going through the "in-basket." The situations may be based on ones that are likely to happen at an institution and should be varied enough to assess skills in community relations, handling crises, responding to employees, dealing with personnel problems, planning, and the like.

All candidates should go through the same evaluation process. The processes used and questions asked must be related to the position. If there are concerns that a question or strategy may be "too personal" or somehow inappropriate, consult with human resource specialists or legal counsel.

### Reference Checks

Checking references and obtaining additional information about the candidate are very important parts of the process. They enable the committee and the board to gain further insight into the candidate's experience, strengths, and qualifications.

References may be called prior to potential semi-finalists being invited for interviews. If problems are identified through the reference checks, the person may not be invited for further consideration. While this practice prevents wasted time and costs, it may be difficult to maintain confidentiality and prevent rumors about why a person was not invited.

References may be called after the invitation has been extended and prior to the semi-finalist being evaluated. It may be possible to explore questions arising from the reference checks at the interview, although care must be taken to treat all candidates the same.

Generally, most reference checks are conducted after the semi-finalist has been interviewed and gone through other assessments. This allows those doing the checks to follow-up on any questions that came up during the assessment process.

No matter when it is done, contacting the references must occur only after permission from the candidate is obtained. Colleagues who are not listed on the candidate's reference list but who have worked with the candidate may be contacted, but this is always done with care and only with the knowledge and approval of the candidate.

Conducting reference checks is the responsibility of the consultant and others skilled in and designated to do the reference checking. Reference checks require sensitivity and the ability to elicit good information through interviews: people that do them have had training in those skills and are dedicated to maintaining a high level of confidentiality. Search processes have been damaged and districts tainted by committee members, trustees, and others who are not responsible for reference checking secretly calling people at the candidate's home institution or talking to others about semi-finalists.

Reference checkers carefully summarize and share the information they learn with the committee. They elicit important information from the references about the person's qualifications related to the expectations of the position, and will seek clarification on issues that were raised during the candidate's visit.

Information gained from references is used by the committee to assist it in determining the finalists. Each committee member must accept information about the candidates in strict confidence. Only the consultant, fellow committee members and the board of trustees should be briefed on the information communicated by the references.

### Selection of the Finalists

The criteria used to select the finalists are based on the needs of the institution defined in the early stages of the search process. The finalists should be selected as soon as possible after the visits with the semifinalists. Every effort should be made to reach a consensus among committee members on which of the candidates would have the best chance of success if appointed CEO.

The number of finalists depends on direction from the board, but there are at least three and maybe up to eight. Finalists are not ranked when they are forwarded to the board.

# The Final Evaluation

The board should meet with the chair of the search committee and consultant to hear a detailed presentation on the search process, general information on the candidate pool, descriptions of those who were considered as semifinalists, and the list of recommended finalists. This meeting is a closed session allowed by the Brown Act.

This report is valuable for a number of reasons. Trustees learn from the search effort the types of educational leaders interested in working for their district. The search committee completes its work with the sense that its effort was appreciated and its recommendations carefully considered. And finally, the board needs information on all semifinalists if it retained the authority to interview one or more semifinalists whose names may not have been forwarded by the committee.

(The board should exercise caution in considering for final interviews those candidates originally rejected by the search committee. While committees can miss good candidates, such a step risks alienating members of the committee with whom the board and new CEO must work.)

After having received the report and accepted or developed a list of finalists, the board should establish a schedule for its evaluation and selection. The board should allow sufficient time for thoughtful consideration, but should ensure that the process moves along in an efficient manner. Board evaluation usually includes further reference checks and interviews with the candidates, and may include other activities such as finalists' visits with campus and community leaders, presentations to the campus community, and/or site visits to the candidate's place of employment. If necessary, the purposes of and information sought from each activity should again be reviewed, clarified and discussed by the board and its consultant.

### Final Interviews

The final interview should be carefully planned. The finalists have met the committee's high standards—now the board must determine which of the qualified finalists has the leadership skills that best meet the needs of the institution. The board interview focuses on qualities and skills that the board requires of its institutional leader, including the ability to work closely with the board.

Trustees should be thoroughly prepared for the interviews, having reviewed all application materials, background information, and reference reports. They may wish to keep their own notes on each of the candidates.

Interviews should be limited to one or two a day and be conducted in an informal atmosphere. While the board should work from a list of questions to ensure that all

areas of concern are covered, trustees and candidates are encouraged to ask questions about areas of individual concern.

# College and Community Meetings

The finalists also may be invited to meet individually or with groups of key institutional and community leaders. Assessments from these meetings can be added to the information considered by the board.

A few districts have asked all finalists to make a presentation to the college community. This provides an opportunity to view the finalists "in action" in front of a group; however, there is a downside to this practice. Members of the college community may favor a person that the board does not select, thereby creating potential dissatisfaction.

### Site Visits

A visit to the candidate's current work site can provide the board and others with an better understanding of the candidate's experience, particularly if the candidate's home institution is quite different than the board's district. Site visits generally do not provide substantively more information about a person's skills and qualities than do thorough reference checks. Therefore, they may not be worth the time and cost involved, unless there are specific reasons for a visit.

# Making the Choice

Voting to make a contract offer to a candidate should not be taken until all board members believe there has been ample opportunity for full expression of their opinions. One approach is to eliminate quickly those candidates with no support among trustees and concentrate discussion on those remaining. The vote to offer a contract is confidential as it is part of contract negotiations.

It is best, of course, if trustees can come to a unanimous decision. The position of chief executive is difficult at best, and the successful candidate will need the full support of the board in the years ahead. Trustees should keep in mind that the ultimate goal is not for the board to select "my candidate," but to hire the best candidate for the entire institution and to ensure that the person is successful.

If a board has one or more members in firm opposition to a majority choice, it may have to proceed without consensus. However, every effort should be made to make a job offer only after all board members have agreed to support the new CEO. If there are differences, the candidate should be informed when offered the position.

To avoid possible embarrassment and wasted time, it is suggested that once the board has made its choice, the chair should ask the successful candidate whether he or she would accept an invitation to be chief executive, assuming agreement on a contract.

If the answer is "no," the board must reconsider the list of finalists. If "yes", the board has two options. First, to agree immediately on a starting date, draw up a contract, and sign it. Or, second, schedule a final meeting with the candidate in two or three days to give the candidate and board time to reflect on any expressed concerns or questions before a contract is signed.

After the candidate agrees to enter into a contract, the board votes in closed session to appoint the new CEO. This vote, including the salary and benefits, is then announced at a public session of the board.

## The Contract

A well-crafted contract ensures clear communication, expresses the institution's values, may serve as a recruiting tool, and is evidence of the board's desire to support a good CEO. Contracts protect the district's and the CEO's interests: they are accountability tools to assure the public that district resources are wisely used.

Boards should ensure that the contract and employment practices are among the positive factors that attract and retain a good CEO. Boards should not risk losing a good CEO (or discouraging potential candidates) because of non-competitive contracts and practices.

The board and the candidate or their legal representatives negotiate the final terms of the contract. The board develops a proposed contract, using advice from the district's attorney and the consultant. Often, the candidate relies on an attorney to review the contract and may request adjustments to the board's proposed contract.

Contracts cover the term of contract, salary, duties and expectations, benefits and other compensation, leaves, and termination. Many contracts also include clauses on the following issues:

- Rollover provisions
- Process for salary increases or negotiations
- Evaluation process
- Other compensation, which may include annuities, deferred compensation, retirement packages, and insurance
- Housing allowance or loan, automobile or expenses, memberships, etc.
- Any rights to faculty or other administrative position should the CEO position end
- Rights to consult and engage in outside activities
- Leaves: vacation, sick leave, and professional development/sabbatical
- Requirement for regular medical exam
- Home/auto office equipment: computers, fax, cell phones, telephone lines
- Separation processes and protections

When negotiating the contract, boards should be flexible within the general parameters set early in the process. Different CEOs have different needs, which may vary depending on where they are in their career. New CEOs may desire housing and moving assistance, support for professional development, and longevity incentives. Those in the last decade of their careers may be interested in packages that boost retirement income, and may wish to roll auto and expense allowances and the like into salaries.

Contracts that show support for and benefit the CEO are not limited to salaries and benefits. Items such as home and travel office equipment (cell phones, computers), annual health exams and health club memberships, and consulting days provide support for the CEO and may make it easier for the person to do the job. Housing loans and allowances have been used in other states, and are recently becoming a consideration for California boards given the high cost of housing in some areas.

Negotiating the contract requires the board to be aware of contract issues that may cause problems. The initial salary should be competitive with other districts, reasonably related to salary levels of other administrators, within the districts' budget, supported by the public, and reflect the community served. The initial salary sets the tone for future salaries; many contracts have clauses in the contract that provide for increases, longevity incentives, and/or bonuses to prevent the need to do a separate "catch up" salary increase.

# What to Avoid

A CEO search can be harmed by a variety of problems. Boards are advised to address the following issues if they exist and as soon as they become aware of them.

- · A dysfunctional board
- · Problems with the preceding president, particular a bad ending to the contract
- · Lack of discussion and/or agreement on the leadership needs of the district
- Lack of experience or education in how to do a search
- Inadequate time and resources for the search
- · A search consultant that doesn't understand the district
- Failure to respect confidentiality
- Political interference in the search
- A committee that ignores the board's charge to it, or the failure of the board to give an adequate charge to the committee
- Insensitivity to constituent and stakeholder needs
- Poor leadership by the board chair
- · Having unclear rules for the process or changing the rules in the middle

- Unclear expectations and mixed messages to candidates by the board, consultant, and committee
- · Not supporting the new CEO once hired

### The Brown Act

The Brown Act provides that closed sessions of the board may be held to consider the appointment or employment of a person. Closed sessions allow the board and candidates to avoid undue publicity or embarrassment for a candidate and allow full and candid discussion. Therefore, candidate interviews, meetings in which specific candidates are discussed, and contract negotiations should be closed sessions. As discussed above, maintaining confidentiality is essential to protect the candidates and the professional reputation of the district.

However, meetings that are not about specific individuals must be held as open meetings, such as when the board discusses the search process, sets the parameters for compensation, explores the leadership needs of the district, and approves the job description and announcement. After the contract has been offered and accepted, and the board takes action in a closed session, the announcement of the action is made at a public meeting.

## After the Selection

Once the selection is made, there are four very important steps to take:

- 1. Notify the remaining finalists and semi-finalists immediately by phone and then in writing by the board chair. The reputation of the board and district will be enhanced by gracious, thoughtful contacts.
- 2. Announce the selection and introduce the CEO. News conferences and releases, receptions, and inaugurations are all important events and rituals. Each board member should seize every opportunity possible to introduce and welcome her or him to the community.
- 3. Hold a planning session for the new CEO and board to affirm the goals and expectations for the first year. This session establishes the foundation for the CEO evaluation process, which should also be developed early on. Informal sessions with the new CEO are also helpful to reach common understandings on how trustee and board questions and concerns should be handled.
- 4. Appropriate staff should be instructed to destroy all search materials no longer needed and return all confidential papers to the candidates.

# College Presidents in Multi-College Districts

Many of the principles and considerations in searching for a chancellor or superintendent apply to searches for college presidents in multi-college districts. However, boards in multi-college districts generally delegate responsibility for the search to the district chancellor; the board plays a more distant role.

Consultants are somewhat less likely to be used to assist in searches for college presidents, although they may be used for portions of the search, such as recruitment and reference checking. The chancellor of the district often assumes responsibility for many of the tasks that a consultant carries out.

The governing board is involved planning the search and assessing the college's leadership needs. It helps develop and approves the position description. However, search committees are comprised of college personnel, and perhaps a representative or two from the immediate community.

Boards vary in the extent of their involvement in the evaluation of the finalists. Some direct the chancellor to forward two or more candidates for board review. Other boards delegate full authority to the chancellor and direct him or her to recommend the president to the board for hire. The approach the board uses depends on the organizational structure, history and culture of the district.

## A Final Word

Recruiting, selecting, hiring, and evaluating chief executive officers are among the most important responsibilities of any board of trustees. We encourage boards to take these duties very seriously. The quality and performance of the institution are at stake.

# Bibliography

- Association of California Community College Administrators. *Annual Benchmark Compensation Survey*. Sacramento, 2002.
- Community College League of California. CEO Contracts and Terms of Employment Survey. Sacramento, 2001.
- Community College League of California. Trustee Handbook. Sacramento, 2002
- Gilmore, Thomas North. *Making a Leadership Change: How Organizations and Leaders Can Handle Leadership Transitions Successfully.* San Francisco, CA: Jossey Bass, 1989.
- Greenberg, Milton. A Reality Check on Presidential Searches. *Trusteeship*. Association of Governing Boards, p. 14-16, September/October 2002.
- Manzo, Kathleen Kennedy. Shopping for a President: As Process becomes More Complex, Boards Increasingly Look for Expert Assistance. *Community College Week*, December 30, 1996.
- O'Banion, Terry. Retaining a Peak-Performing President. Mission Viejo, CA: League for Innovation, Leadership Abstracts, 2 (16), 1989.
- Proulx, Gena and John W. Marr, Jr. *Improving the Administrative Search Process*. Mission Viejo, CA: League for Innovation, Leadership Abstracts, 9 (4), 1996.
- Reisman, David and Judith McLaughlin. Choosing a College President: Opportunities and Constraints. Lawrenceville, NJ: Princeton University Press, 1990.
- Ross, Marlene and Madeleine Green, *The American College President, 1998 Edition.* Washington, DC: American Council on Education, 1998.
- Smith, Cindra J. *Trusteeship in Community Colleges, A Guide to Effective Governance.*Washington DC: Association of Community College Trustees, 2000.
- Vaughan, George B., G. A Millander and B. Blois. *The Community College Presidency: Current Status and Future Outlook.* Washington, DC: American Association of Community Colleges, 1994.
- Vaughan, George B., and Weisman, Iris M. *The Community College Presidency at the Millennium*. Washington, DC: American Association of Community Colleges, 1998.
- Weisman, Iris M. and Vaughan, George B. *Presidents and Trustees in Partnership: New Roles and Leadership Challenges*. New Directions for Community Colleges #98, 1997.
- Wolin, Carrole A. *The CEO Contract: Creating a Winning Partnership*. Washington DC: American Association of Community Colleges, 1996.



## EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

16007 Crenshaw Boulevard Torrance, California 90506-0001 Telephone (310) 532-3670 or 1-866-ELCAMINO

March 10, 2009

Dr. Thomas M. Fallo Superintendent/President El Camino College Torrance, California 90506

Dear President Fallo:

The following is information regarding the Safe Driver program at El Camino College. The program is administered by the El Camino College Police Department:

- 1. A DMV check is made on the employee/driver. The check is valid for a period of one year.
- 2. Employee/driver views a 30-minute safe driving video.
- 3. After the video, interactive discussion/questions are facilitated by a police officer.
- 4. Employee/driver is given a safety/awareness driving handbook and related material that covers driving, safety, passenger safety and reporting of accidents.
- 5. Employee/driver is given a hands-on overview of vehicle. Employee/driver is asked to arrive an hour prior to departure to practice driving and to get used to using outside mirrors and measuring distances while driving a van. (Employee/driver may not have driven a van before.)

The training lasts about an hour and is under the coordination of Sergeant Jonathan Ott.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Aeanie Nishime

Vice President

Student & Community Advancement



# El Camino College

Office of the Vice President - Student & Community Advancement

Jeanie M. Nishime, Vice President

February 27, 2009

TO:

Management

Faculty

Staff

Students

SUBJECT:

EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHOOL CALENDAR FOR 2009/2010

Attached is the 2009/2010 El Camino Community College District School Calendar approved by the Board of Trustees.

Additional copies of the calendar may be obtained from the Office of the Vice President-Student & Community Advancement.

JN/mre

Attachment

### EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR 2009-2010

		JULY	Y 200	09				NOV	EM	BER	200	9					MA	RCI	I 201	.0	
S	M	T	W	T	F	S	$\mathbf{S}_{-}$	M	T	W	Т	F	S		<u>S</u>	M	T	W	T	F	S
			1	2*	[3]	[4]	1	2	3	4	5	6	7			1	2	3	4	5	6
[5]	6	7	8	9	[10]	[11]	8	9	10	11	12	13*	14		7	8	9	10	11	12	13
[12]	13	14	15	16	[17]	[18]	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	1	4	15	16	17	18	19	20
[19]	20	21	22	23	[24]	[25]	22	23	24	25	26*	27*	[28]	2	1	22	23	24	25	26	27
[26]	27	28	29	30	[31]		[29]	30						2	8	29	30	31			
		UGU					_			BER									2016		
S	M	<u>T</u>	W	T	F_	S	S	M	T	W	T	F	S		<u>S</u>	M	T	W	<u>T</u>	<u>F</u>	S
						[1]			1	2	3	4	5			_	_		1	2	3
[2]	3	4	5	6	[7]		6	7	8	9	10	11	12	4		5	6	7	8	9	[10]
[9]	10	11	12	13	(14)		13	14		16	17	18	[19]	_	-	• /	• •	, ,	(15)		17
[16]		(18)								(23)		1 —	[26]	1		19	20	21	22	23	24
[23]	, ,	(25)	(26)	{27}	{28}	29	[27]	[28]	[29]	[30]	31*	]		2	5	26	27	28	29	30	
30	31																				
	SEP	TEM	מיזאו	200:	O.			TA	NIIA	RY 2	2010						M	[AV	2010		
S	M	T	W	T	F	S	S	M	T	W	T	F	S	1	<del>S</del>	M	T	W	T	F	S
	171	1	2	3	4	5	Ŋ	171		V V		1*		ı	<u>,                                     </u>	171		**			
	7*	_	9	3 10	_	12	[2]	7.45	(5)	6	7	8	[2] [9]		2	3	4	5	6	7	8
6 13	14	8 15	_	17	11 18	12 19	[3] [10]	(4)	(5) 12	13	14	15	[16]		9	3 10	11	12	13	14	15
20	14 21	22	16 23	24	16 25	19 26		18*	19	20	21	22			9 16	17	18	19	20	21	22
20 27	21	29	30	24	45	20			26	20 27	28	29	[23] [30]		10 23	24	25	26	27	28	29
21	28	29	30				[24]	25	20	21	20	49	լյսյ		13 10	31*	•	<b>∠</b> U	£ 1	40	47
							[31]							Š	U	<b>P1</b> .	J				
	00	ТОВ	ero 1	2000					DIT	ARY	2014						m	INT	2010	1	
S	M	T	W	<u>2009</u> T	F	S	S	M	T	W	<u> </u>	F	S	1	 S	M	T	W	7010 T	F	Ş
3	IVI	<u>I</u>	VV				ြ							1	<u>.</u>	TAT		2	3	4	_ <u></u>
,	_	_	_	1	2	3	r para	1	2	3	4	5	[6]		,	<b>,</b> =	1			-	
4	5	6	7	8	9	10	[7]	8	9	<b>{10}</b>	_	-	* 13		6	7	8	9	10	11	[12]
11	12	13	14	15	16	17		15*	16	17	18	19		_	_	, ,	, ,	, ,		(18)	
18	19	20	21	22	23	24		22	23	24	25	26	27		20]		22		24	[25]	[26]
25	26	27	28	29	30	31	28							l	27]	28	29	30			
T <sub>all</sub>			S	a	·	TEL	Dave	G.	***	034 Y			nan II	137	nte	\ <b>T</b>		No C	lasse	10	
Fall			3pi	ring		riex	Days	1 20	mm	er I	3	umr	ner II	W				140 C	_1 <b>ass</b> (	28	

Session

- { } Staff Development Flex Days Campus Remains Open Classes not in session
- [ ] Campus Closed

- \* Holidays (Management, Faculty, Staff, Students)
- ( ) Campus Remains Open Classes not in session

## EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR SCH			9-2010
Fall Semester 2009			
Faculty & Staff Development Flex Days	Thurs-Fri	August 27 & 28	2009
Mandatory Flex Day – 6 hours	Thursday	August 27	2009
Fall Semester Classes Begin	Saturday	August 29	2009
Weekday Classes Begin	Monday	August 31	2009
Labor Day Holiday, Campus Closed	Monday	September 7	2009
First Day to Apply for Graduation and Certificates (Fall)	Tuesday	September 8	2009
Last Day to Add (Full Semester Courses)	Friday	September 11	2009
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Friday	September 11	2009
Active Enrollment Census	Monday	September 14	2009
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Friday	September 25	2009
Last Day to Apply for Graduation and Certificates (Fall)	Friday	October 16	2009
Mid-Term Classes Begin	Saturday	October 24	2009
Veterans Day Holiday (Campus Closed)	Friday	November 13	2009
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Friday	November 20	2009
Thanksgiving Day Holidays/Weekend (Campus Closed)	Thurs-Sun	November 26 - 29	2009
Fall Semester Ends	Friday	December 18	2009
Winter Recess (Campus Closed)	Thurs-Fri	Dec 24, 2009- Jan 1	2010
Winter Holidays (Campus Closed)	Thurs-Fri	December 24 & 25	2009
New Year's Holidays (Campus Closed)	Thurs-Fri	Dec 31, 2009 & Jan 1	2010
• • •			
Winter Session 2010			
Winter Session Classes Begin	Wednesday	January 6	2010
First Day to Apply for Graduation and Certificates (Spring)	Monday	January 11	2010
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Tuesday	January 12	2010
Last Day to Add	Tuesday	January 12	2010
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Thursday	January 14	2010
Martin Luther King Holiday	Monday	January 18	2010
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Monday	February 1	2010
Winter Session Classes End	Tuesday	February 9	2010
(Weekend classes are not held during Winter Session)			
Spring Semester – 2010			
Faculty & Staff Development Flex Days	Wed-Thurs	February 10 & 11	2010
Mandatory Flex Day – 3 hours	Wednesday	February 10	2010
Lincoln's Day Holiday (Campus Closed)	Friday	February 12	2010
Spring Semester Classes Begin	Saturday	February 13	2010
Washington's Day Holiday, Campus Closed	Monday	February 15	2010
Weekday Classes Begin	Tuesday	February 16	2010
Last Day to Add (Full Semester Courses)	Friday	February 26	2010
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Friday	February 26	2010
Active Enrollment Census	Monday	March 1	2010
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Friday	March 5	2010
Last Day to Apply for Graduation and Certificates (Spring)	Friday	March 5	2010
Spring Recess (Faculty & Students)	Sat-Fri	April 10-16	2010
Mid-Term Classes Begin	Saturday	April 17	2010
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Friday	May 7	2010
Memorial Day Holiday, Campus Closed	Monday	May 31	2010
Graduation	Friday	June 11	2010
Spring Semester Ends	Friday	June 11	2010

### <u>Summer Sessions – 2010</u>

First Six-Week Session - 2010			
First Six-Week Session Begins	Monday	June 21	2010
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Thursday	June 24	2010
Last Day to Add	Thursday	June 24	2010
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Wednesday	June 30	2010
Independence Day Holiday (Campus Closed)	Monday	July 5	2010
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Monday	July 19	2010
First Six-Week Session Ends	Thursday	July 29	2010
Second Six-Week Session - 2010			
Second Six-Week Session Begins	Monday	June 28	2010
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Thursday	July 1	2010
Last Day to Add	Thursday	July 1	2010
Independence Day Holiday (Campus Closed)	Monday	July 5	2010
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Thursday	July 8	2010
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Monday	July 26	2010
Second Six-Week Session Ends	Thursday	August 5	2010
Eight Week Session – 2010			
Eight Week Session Begins	Monday	June 28	2010
Last Day to Drop and Be Eligible for a Refund	Thursday	July 1	2010
Independence Day Holiday (Campus Closed)	Monday	July 5	2010
Last Day to Add	Tuesday	July 6	2010
Last Day to Drop without Notation on Permanent Record	Tuesday	July 13	2010
Last Day to Drop with a "W"	Wednesday	August 4	2010
Eight Week Session Ends	Thursday	August 19	2010

Saturdays & Sundays - No Classes - 2009-2010

Fall Semester
November 28 & 29, 2009

Spring Semester
April 10 & 11, 2010

### EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR 2009-2010 SUMMER CALENDAR 2010

JUNE 2010								
S	M	T	W	T	F	S		
		1	2	3	4	5		
6	7	8	9	10	11	[12]		
[13]	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17	)(18)	[19]		
[20]	21	22	23	24	[25]	[26]		
[27]	28	29	30					

	<b>JULY 2010</b>								
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S			
				1	[2][	3]			
[ 4	] 5*	6	7	8	[ 9]	[10]			
[11	] 12	13	14	15	[16]	[17]			
[18	] 19	20	21	22	[23]	[24]			
[25	] 26	27	28	29	[30]	[31]			

		AUG	UST	2010	)	
S	M	T	W	Τ	F	S
[1]	2	3	4	5	[ 6]	[ 7]
[ 8]	9	10	11	12	[13]	[14]
[15]	16	<b>17</b>	18	19	(20)	[21]
[22]	(23)	(24)	(25)	<b>{26}</b>	<b>{27}</b>	28
29	30	31				

Summer Session ------ 2010

### Six-Week Sessions

### **Eight-Week Session**

June 21 through July 29, 2010 June 28 through August 5, 2010 June 28 through August 19, 2010

### Summer Four-Day Workweek Schedule - 2010

The 4-day, 8-hour a day workweek for classified and administrative employees will begin Monday, June 21, 2010 and end Thursday, August 12, 2010. During this period of time, Fridays are non-work days.

### EL CAMINO COLLEGE COMPTON CENTER

The El Camino College Compton Center will observe the 2010 Summer Session June 14, 2010 through August 20, 2010, with two five-week sessions and one eight-week session.

Fall	Spring	Flex Days	Summer	No Classes
77.77				

{ } - Staff Development Flex Days - Campus Remains Open - Classes not in session

[ ] - Campus Closed

\* - Holidays (Management, Faculty, Staff, Students)

( ) - Campus Remains Open - Classes not in session

## EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR 2009-2010 HOLIDAYS FOR 12-MONTH EMPLOYEES

1. Independence Day Holiday	Thursday	July 2
2. Labor Day Holiday	Monday	September 7
3. Veterans Day Holiday	Friday	November 13
4. Thanksgiving Holiday	Thursday	November 26
5. Local Holiday	Friday	November 27
6. Local Holiday	Thursday	December 24
7. Christmas Holiday	Friday	December 25
8. Local Holiday	Thursday	December 31
9. New Year's Holiday	Friday	January 1
10. Martin Luther King's Holiday	Monday	January 18
11. Lincoln's Holiday	Friday	February 12
12. Washington's Holiday	Monday	February 15
13. Memorial Day Holiday	Monday	May 31



# NEWSLETTER

Volume 21 • Number 2

February 27, 2009

## STATE BUDGET NEWS

The "18-month budget" was approved on February 20 by the Legislature.

This budget plan is dependent on the results of a May 2009 special election, when voters will be asked to approve restraints on government growth, borrowing against future state lottery revenues, and cuts in mental health and early-childhood education programs.

Impacts of the approved budget on community colleges include:

- Eliminates the approved 0.68% cost-of-living adjustment (-\$39.8 million)
- 2008-09: Reduces state funding for mandates (-\$4 million)
- 2008-09: Defers \$340 million in state payments to the 2009-10 fiscal year (replacing \$245 million deferral approved in existing 2008-09 budget; minimizes state borrowing and reduces Prop. 98 guarantee)
- 2009-10: Funds 3% enrollment growth (\$185.4 million), enough funds for 36,000 new full-time equivalent students
- 2009-10: Maintains funding for the Competitive Cal Grants program, which provides 22,500 grants annually to needy non-traditional students
- Generally: Since there were no categorical or general apportionment cuts, language to allow categorical flexibility was not included

A general deficit of \$76 million to community colleges is expected in the P-1 apportionment, which includes a \$36 million shortfall in local revenues. Of this amount, a \$33 million loss is anticipated from property tax shortfalls. A \$40 million structural shortfall also exists, largely due to unfunded FTES (full-time equivalent students). This problem is directly attributable to the \$80 million permanent reduction to our apportionments that occurred as part of the 2007-08 Budget Act.

Although the budget contains numerous reductions, it is also important to remember what community colleges were able to successfully keep out of the final budget bill this year:

- proposed 5% apportionment cuts
- proposed \$30-40/unit student fees, with the benefit going to the state general fund and not students
- proposed differential funding for physical education and arts classes
- proposed elimination of Competitive Cal Grants, which is financial aid for our neediest students
- proposed 20.2% cuts to categorical programs including technology, part-time faculty support, foster care and child care

We will continue to update information as it becomes available.

# **Cherry Blossom Festival**

El Camino College's Ninth Annual Cherry Blossom Festival will take place near the planetarium, where our cherry trees are planted. Please join us on Tuesday, March 3 at 1:00 p.m. to celebrate the coming of spring.

The annual "Dr. Nadine Ishitani Hata Memorial Cherry Blossom Festival" event is named after the college's former Vice President of Academic Affairs, who passed away in 2005. Dr. Hata was an internationally known scholar who was extremely involved in academia and com-

munity work. She was instrumental in bringing the cherry trees to the campus nine years ago, one of the many programs she supported during her 34-year career at El Camino College.

Under Dr. Hata's leadership, the Cherry Blossom Festival has become a college tradition – a way to ring in the spring season and celebrate friendship. The winner of the 2009 Dr. Nadine Ishitani Hata Memorial Scholarship will be announced at the event. Presentations of haiku, poems by ECC English students and other performances will also be featured. Light refreshments will be served.

"The mission of El Camino College is to meet the educational needs of our diverse community and ensure student success by offering quality, comprehensive educational opportunities. Get Ready for our Employee Giving Campaign

Our foundation's 2009 Employee Giving Campaign begins in March. This is an opportunity for us to showcase our commitment as a college to help our students realize their educational goals and dreams. Pledge forms will be available soon, along with more information about this year's campaign.

The 10-day campaign begins with a kick-off pancake breakfast in March. A raffle drawing is also planned – any employee who turns in a pledge form at the breakfast will be entered into a raffle for \$10 Starbuck gift certificates. Raffles are also scheduled throughout March – with a grand prize of a parking space near where your office location for one year.

Watch for details in your e-mail and join your co-workers to support the 2009 Employee Giving Campaign. Together, the difference we make will last a lifetime.

# **Fire Academy Accreditation**

We are proud to report that the El Camino College Fire Academy received its accreditation from the California State Fire Marshal Office on the Information boards.

The accreditation process is conducted every five years by the office of the California State Fire Marshal. The accreditation certifies that the El Camino College Fire Academy program is accepted by fire departments for hiring prospective new firefighters. Accreditation status also allows the ECC Fire Academy to call itself a State of California Fire Academy and can issue a certificate of graduation sanctioned by the state training standards.

The El Camino College Fire Academy is one of only two state-approved college fire academies in Los Angeles County that runs a full-time and part time-fire academy.

# Women's Volleyball: Scholar Athletes

Congratulations to our back-to-back state championship women's volleyball team, which was recently recognized for its dedication to academics and athletics. The team was selected as a California Community College Commission on Athletics (COA) and California Community College Athletic Association (CCCAA) Scholar Team Recipient.

We are especially proud of this prestigious award because it emphasizes the academic achievement of all team members, an honor that exemplifies El Camino College's philosophy and tradition of excellence both in scholastic and athletic pursuits.

Members of the women's volleyball team will be honored at a luncheon during an upcoming COA/CCCAA convention.



# **Safety Reminders**

Remember to please do your part to promote a safe campus environment. Use the buddy system - don't walk alone. Everyone is reminded to be aware of his or her surroundings while walking on campus - the use of listening devices and cell phones may be distracting and also be targets for theft.

Use our courtesy shuttle! This free service is provided from 6:00 to 10:30 p.m. and on an on-call basis 24 hours per day to all members of the campus community. You may also use one of the POLICE phones located throughout campus, or call 310-660-3100.

When driving, please proceed with caution; remember pedestrians have the right of way. Likewise, pedestrians please watch for vehicle traffic, even in crosswalks - sometimes drivers cannot see you until it's too late.

## **CAMPUS CALENDAR**

#### March 2-5 Club Rush 3 Cherry Blossom Festival 6 Last Day to Drop w/o Note on Permanent Record Last Day to Apply for Graduation and Certificates 14-15 Sweeney Todd 20-22 27-29 16 **Board of Trustees Meeting**

Green Job & Internship Fair

24-26 Red Cross Blood Drive

19

# Comparison of Accreditation Sanctions across Commissions 2003-2008

This document summarizes all of the formal sanctions—including "warning," "probation," "show cause," and "termination of accreditation"—that the six national accrediting commissions have given colleges over the past five years. As indicated below, the ACCJC has sanctioned 41 of the 110 California community colleges during this period. By contrast, the other five commissions have issued sanctions to only 15 out of a total of 756 colleges within their jurisdiction.

# Middle States Assoc. of Colleges and Schools (MSA) – The Commission on Higher Ed. (CHE)

<u>Jurisdiction:</u> New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the US Virgin Islands (also schools attended by American children in Europe, North Africa and the Middle East)

Community Colleges Served = 95

<u>History of CC Sanctions 2003-8</u>: 6 Sanctions out of 95 colleges = 6%

2005 – Warning

• Community College of Allegheny County

2006 - Warning

- Atlantic Cape Community College
- Fulton-Montgomery Community College

2008 - Warning

- Adirondack Community College
- Hudson County Community College
- Westmoreland County Community College

# New England Assoc. of Schools and Colleges (NEAS&C) - The Com. of Institutes of Higher Ed. (CIHE)

<u>Jurisdiction</u>: Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, and Vermont

Community Colleges Served = 64

History of CC Sanctions 2003-8: 0 Sanctions out of 64 colleges =  $\underline{0\%}$ 

# North Central Assoc. of Colleges and Schools (NCA) - The Higher Learning Com. (HLC)

<u>Jurisdiction</u>: Arkansas, Arizona, Colorado, Iowa, Illinois, Indiana, Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, Nebraska, Ohio, Oklahoma, New Mexico, South Dakota, Wisconsin, West Virginia and Wyoming

Community Colleges Served = 243

History of CC Sanctions 2003-8: 2 Sanctions out of 243 colleges = 0.8%

2002-2003 -Closed

- Mount Senario College
- 2008 -Probation
  - Nebraska Indian Community College

# Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities (NWCCU)

Jurisdiction: Alaska, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, Oregon, Utah, and Washington

Community Colleges Served = 56

<u>History of CC Sanctions 2003-8</u>:  $\theta$  Sanctions out of 56 colleges = 0%

# Southern Assoc. of Colleges and Schools (SACS) – The Southern Assoc. of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges (SACS-COC)

<u>Jurisdiction</u>: Virginia, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Alabama, Tennessee and Texas

Community Colleges Served = 298

History of CC Sanctions 2003-8: 7 Sanctions out of 298 colleges = 2%

2003 -Warning

Eastfield College

2007 - Warning

Texas State Technical College Marshall

2008 - Warning

- South Georgia College
- Hinds Community College
- South Georgia College
- Eastfield College

2008 -Probation

Louisburg College

# Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) – Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges (ACCJC)

<u>Jurisdiction</u>: California, Hawaii, Guam, American Samoa, Micronesia, Palau, and Northern Marianas Islands

Community Colleges Served = 174

California Community Colleges Served = 110

History of CC Sanctions 2003-8: 117 sanctions given to 174 colleges

# 41 Individual CA Public community colleges sanctioned out of 110 = 37%

2003 -Warning

- American Samoa Community College
- Kauai Community College
- Merritt College

### 2003-Probation

College of the Marshall Islands

#### 2004 -Warning

- Kauai Community College
- Merritt College .
- Leeward College
- Northern Marianas College

### 2004-Probation

College of the Marshall Islands

#### 2004-Show Cause

- College of the Marshall Islands
- D-Q University

### 2005 -Warning

- · College of Alameda
- Honolulu Community Collegé
- Laney College
- Merritt College
- Vista College
- Kauai Community College
- Leeward Community College
- Kapi'olani Community College
- Maui Community College
- · Windward Community College
- College of Micronesia-FSM
- College of Marin
- Evergreen Valley College
- San Jose City College
- West Hills College Coalinga
- Hawaii Community College

### 2005-Probation

Brooks College

#### 2005-Show Cause

- College of the Marshall Islands
- Compton Community College
- Salvation Army Crestmont College

### 2005-Accreditation Termination

D-Q University

### 2006 - Warning

- College of the Redwoods
- Fresno City College
- College of Marin
- Windward Community College
- Feather River College
- Hawaii Tokai International College
- Lassen College
- College of the Redwoods

### 2006-Probation

- Queen of the Holy Rosary
- College of the Marshall Islands

### 2006-Accreditation Terminated

Compton Community College

### 2007 - Warning

- Cerro Coso Community College
- College of the Sequoias
- Porterville College
- College of Marin
- Fresno City College
- Hawai'i Tokai International College

- College of the Marshall Islands
- Los Angeles County College of Nursing and Allied Health
- Western Career College
- Victor Valley College

### 2007 - Probation

- Northern Marianas College
- Heald College
- Lassen College
- Hartnell College
- College of the Redwoods
- Brooks College

### 2007-Show Cause

American Academy of Dramatic Arts-Los Angeles

# 2007 - Withdrawal and Termination of Accreditation:

Don Bosco Technical Institute

### 2008 - Warning

- Canada College
- College of San Mateo
- Cuesta College
- Hartnell College
- Imperial Valley College
- Marymount College
- Mira Costa College
- San Joaquin Valley College
- Shasta College
- Sierra College
- Solano Community College
- College of the Marshall Islands
- Hawai'i Tokai International College
- Porterville College
- Victor Valley College
- Cerritos College
- Copper Mountain College
- Diablo Valley College
- Mission College
- Ohlone College
- Orange Coast College
- Palo Verde College
- San Joaquin Delta College

### 2008 - Probation

- College of Marin
- Los Angeles County College of Nursing and Allied Health
- Modesto Junior College
- College of the Redwoods
- Lassen College
- Los Angeles Southwest College

### 2008 - Show Cause

- Northern Marianas College
- Salvation Army Crestment College
- TransPacific Hawaii College

### 2008 -Withdrawal from Accreditation

American Academy of Dramatic Arts – Los Angeles

### 2009 - Warning

- Cuesta College
- El Camino College

- Long Beach City College
- Rio Hondo College
- Santa Ana College
- Lassen College
- Imperial Valley College
- Ohlone College
- Palo Verde College
- Shasta College
- Sierra College

### 2009 - Probation

- American Samoa Community College
- Crafton Hills College
- San Joaquin Delta College

### 2009 - Show Cause

- Northern Marianas College
- Diablo Valley College
- Solano Community College

### 2009 - Accepted Closure Report

- Brooks College
- 2009 Accepted Closure Report and Terminated Accreditation
  - TransPacific Hawai'i College (effective April 3, 2009)

# ACCJC Sanctions of California Community Colleges 2003-8

(The following list includes community colleges that have been placed on warning, probation, show cause, or had their accreditation revoked between 2003-2008 within the state of <u>California</u>. The asterix (\*) by the college indicates whether or not the school has been on the list multiple times for sanctions)

- Merritt College\*
- College of Alameda
- Laney College
- College of Marin\*
- Evergreen Valley College
- San Jose City College
- West Hills College Coalinga
- Compton Community College\*
- Fresno City College\*
- Feather River College
- Cerro Coso Community College
- College of the Sequoias
- Victor Valley College\*
- Lassen College\*
- Hartnell College\*
- College of the Redwoods\*
- Canada College
- College of San Mateo
- Cuesta College\* .
- Imperial Valley College\*
- Mira Costa College
- Shasta College\*
- Sierra College\*
- Solano Community College\*
- Porterville College
- Cerritos College
- · Copper Mountain College
- Diablo Valley College\*
- Mission College
- Ohlone College\*
- Orange Coast College
- Palo Verde College\*
- San Joaquin Delta College\*
- Modesto Junior College
- Los Angeles Southwest College
- El Camino College
- Long Beach City College
- Rio Hondo College
- Santa Ana College
- Santiago Canyon College
- Crafton Hills College

Total number of schools given sanctions: 41

Total Community Colleges in California: 110

In the past five six years, roughly 37% of California community colleges have been given one form of sanction.

# El Camino Community College District

(310) 660-3776

16007 Crenshaw Boulevard • Torrance, California 90506

February 10, 2009

Board of Trustees El Camino College 16007 Crenshaw Blvd. Torrance, CA 90506

Attn: Dr. Nathaniel Jackson, President, Trustee

Dr. Ray Gen, Vice President, Trustee

Miss Maureen O'Donnell, Secretary, Trustee Mr. William J. Beverly, Member, Trustee Mrs. Mary E. Combs, Member, Trustee Ms. Elise Yerelian, Student Member

### Dear Trustees:

I have recently celebrated my 30<sup>th</sup> anniversary as an instructor with the college. In recognition of my anniversary, the people of the district gave me a very handsome Ecco Drive Citizen watch. The sentiment of this gift is a kind reminder of the many wonderful years I have experienced in service to the students and to the college.

Thank you for honoring my service for an institution that we are all very fortunate and proud to serve.

Very truly yours,

MICHAEL S. BÓTELLO

Instructor of Business Law/ Real Estate

MSB:ln



# EL CAMINO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## PARAMEDIC TRAINING INSTITUTE

El Camino Community College and the Paramedic Training Institute cordially invite you to attend the 209<sup>st</sup> Paramedic Class' graduation ceremony.

> When: Wednesday, April 22, 2009 Time: 3:00 p.m.

Where: El Camino College – Campus Theatre 16700 Crenshaw Blvd, Torrance, CA 90506

Please RSVP to DZAVALA@elcamino.edu



One Dupont Circle, NW Suite 410 Washington, DC 20036

www.aacc.nche.edu [T] 202.728.0200 [F] 202.833.2467 February 3, 2009

Thomas Fallo
President
El Camino Community College District
16007 Crenshaw Blvd.
Torrance, CA 90506

Dear Dr. Fallo:

Thank you for participating in the 2009 AACC Outstanding Alumni Award competition. All nominees were truly outstanding and selecting winners from the hundreds of nominations reviewed proved very competitive.

Your nominee, Dennis H. Mangers, was not among this year's awardees. I want to assure you that your efforts have been well spent, however. AACC publicizes this excellent list of outstanding alumni in many ways. All nominees will be added to the community college alumni database for media, public information, and publications purposes.

This year's group of Outstanding Alumni nominees certainly gives us all reason to be proud. Thank you, once again, for your participation.

If you have any questions, please get in touch with Sarah Lawler at slawler@aacc.nche.edu or 202-728-0200 x208.

Sincerely,

George R. Boggs President and CEO

cc: Ann Garten, Director, Public Information

George R. Boggs